
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., April 08, 2025  

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, April 01, 2025 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, April 06, 2025 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – March 25, 2025 

                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2025-021 …………………………………………………………….         1 

Resolution commending Ms. Amor M. Say, Planner III, for her dedication 

and contributions to the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

(GHURA) 

2. Resolution No. FY2025-022 …………………………………………………………….       2 - 5 

Resolution adopting the Guam Elderly Multifamily Housing Program 

Tenant Selection Plan (TSP) 

 

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 

 

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, April 22, 2025 

@ 12:00 p.m.   

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 





 





 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2025                                                    Page 1 of 7 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., March 25, 2025 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of 
Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:02 P.M., Tuesday, 
March 25, 2025, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room. Chairman 
Rivera indicated that 4 of 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, 
representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85123735508?pwd=5JOTbEM8YGb20QnCiHdDqytsHoA95n.1 

YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                        Virtual             In-Person             
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual             In-Person        
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual             In-Person        
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person    
Victor Torres, Commissioner                                   Virtual             In-Person        
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person    
*No Requests to attend meeting virtually were submitted via email.  

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director          Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator     Carlo Ongklungel  
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director           Sonny Perez, AE Manager             Tyler Mortera  
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                     Frances Danieli, Controller            
Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager                         Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner                            
Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager                               Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator                    
Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager                      Antonio Camacho, Procurement                               
Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager       Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager                          
Jolyn Terlaje                                                       Nicole Alejandro                                                                
Miguel Fernandez                                              Section 8 Staff and Fiscal Staff   
Michael Ricuyal                                                   Ervin Santiago     
Maria Cherry Canete                                           Patrick Luces  
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig Jr., Legal Counsel for GHURA   
 

Public None  
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Tuesday, March 18, 2025 

    2nd Printing – Sunday, March 23, 2025 
 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY Vice Chairman Sanchez. 
 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2025                                                    Page 2 of 7 
 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [424/25] Commissioner Corpus moved 

to approve the board meeting minutes of March 11, 2025 subject to corrections.  

Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. 
FY2025-020- 
Resolution 
approving the Guam 
Community Block 
Grant-Disaster 
Recovery 
Procurement Policy 
adopting Federal 
Compliance 
Standards  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[425/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
Resolution No. FY2025-020 on pages 1-11 
of 13 in the GHURA Board of 
Commissioners (BoC) March 25, 2025, 
meeting packet, which is also found on 
the GHURA website, www.ghura.org. 

 

Deputy Director Esteves stated the 
following: 

• In the policy, the word “recipient” 
was substituted with the word 
“GHURA” 

• GHURA has confirmed with HUD that 
under the normal utilization of 
federal grants standards 200.317-
200.327, applies. GHURA may follow 
one of three options to be compliant:  

o use federal standards from 
318-327 to meet compliance 

o use state plus 318-327 
o use local jurisdiction plus 318-

327 
• This will lead into Phase II, which 

confirms the Procurement Policy and 
Standards are consistent with federal 
regulations.  

• There are hard grant procurement 
requirements in terms of timeliness 
and federal and local regulations that 
GHURA will have to consider and 
adopt regarding the DR funds.  

• The government of Guam law 5501 
does not require a time limit on the 
AG review.  

• Another consideration is the 
Simplified Acquisition Threshold 
(SAT), which is $25,000 for Guam 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2025                                                    Page 3 of 7 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

law. This would be difficult to utilize 
grant funds with the threshold of 
$25,000.  

• In keeping with the federal 
requirements under the grant, but 
citing Government of Guam 
procurement law, the federal law 
takes precedence.  

• In recognizing DR’s operational needs 
and if standards 318-327 are 
adopted, HUD may find GHURA 
compliant with federal requirements 
and regulations.  

• Another concern is that within the 
local procurement law, there are DEI 
aspects in terms of procurement 
preferences to certain classes. Strictly 
for the DR funds, GHURA has opted to 
follow the federal guidelines to be 
compliant.  

Commissioner Torres asked about whether 
GHURA would be utilizing the Government 
of Guam procurement law. Deputy Director 
Esteves confirmed GHURA would be 
following the Government of Guam 
procurement law 5501, but would also be 
following the federal requirement.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[426/25]  

Vice Chairman Sanchez 

moved to approve 

Resolution No. FY2025-

020- Resolution 

approving the Guam 

Community Block Grant-

Disaster Recovery 

Procurement Policy 

adopting Federal 

Compliance Standards as 

amended with correction 

to page one, adding the 

DEVELOPMENT after the 

word Community. 

Commissioner Rice and 

Corpus seconded the 

motion. There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.   



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2025                                                    Page 4 of 7 
 

 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

AGENDA ITAM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Change Order #1- IFB- 
GHURA-24-004; 
Renovation and Upgrade 
of Basketball Court and 
Construction of 
Generator Room at Toto 
Gardens 

[427/25] Executive Director Napoli read 
Change Order #1-GHURA-24-004; 
Renovation and Upgrade of Basketball 
Court and Construction of Generator Room 
at Toto Gardens, on pages 12-13 of 13. in the 
GHURA Board of Commissioners (BoC) 
March 25, 2025, meeting packet, which was 
also found on the GHURA website, 
www.ghura.org. 

 

Vice Chairman Sanchez requested that Deputy 
Director Esteves reiterate the requirements for 
a change order. Deputy Director Esteves stated 
that an equitable adjustment occurs when 
there is no change in the scope of work, but 
because of something unforeseen, it has 
brought the costs up or down, at no fault of the 
contractor.  

Mr. Michael Ricuyal, AE Engineer, indicated 
that a concrete slab and asphalt were not 
discovered by the contractor until the project 
was underway.  

Commissioner Corpus inquired about the 
removal and disposal of two 45 ft. containers in 
the change order and questioned if this item 
was in included in the original scope of work. 
Mr. Ricuyal stated that it was not included in 
the scope of work but was requested to have 
the removal of the containers added to the 
change order. Deputy Director Esteves added 
that the contractor was going to do disposal 
work so if there were demolition materials in 
the containers, they may be hauled away too.  

Vice Chairman Sanchez requested that a picture 
of the basketball court and containers be sent 
to the commissioners.  

 

[428/25] 
Commissioner Torres 
moved to approve 
Change Order #1-
GHURA-24-004; 
Renovation and 
Upgrade of Basketball 
Court and Construction 
of Generator Room at 
Toto Gardens in the 
adjusted amount of 
$1,720,600.00 with a 
new completion date of 
June 30, 2025 to O.H. 
Construction with the 
corrections to the 
letter made to Mr. Lee 
on the first line to be 
dated March 3, 2025. 
Commissioner Rice 
seconded the motion. 
There were no 
objections. Motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.ghura.org/


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2025                                                    Page 5 of 7 
 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

AGENDA ITAM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Project Updates [429/25]- Executive Director Napoli 
requested that Deputy Director Esteves 
provide updates to the board regarding the 
CDBG-DR Town Hall meetings 

Deputy Director Esteves stated the following: 

• GHURA had conducted six Town Hall 
meetings for the comment period of the 
DR Draft Action Plan with a mixed 
attendance.  

• A virtual town hall was held and a copy 
of that meeting will be posted on DR 
website.  

• Ongoing stakeholder engagements are 
being scheduled. These include the 
legislature, other government agencies, 
community organizations, and a 
broadband stakeholder agreement 

• Job positions announcements have been 
distributed to the public 

• Ms. Tyler Mortera, GHURA PIO, was 
introduced to the board members.  
 

Mr. Eliseo M. Florig Jr, 
Legal Counsel for 
GHURA, requested a 
five-minute recess to 
verify that the contract 
date on Change Order 
#1 IFB-GHURA-24-004.  
 
Vice Chairman Sanchez 
moved to go into a five-
minute recess. 
Commissioner Corpus 
seconded the motion. 
There were no 
objections. Motion 
passed unanimously at 
12:47P.M. 
 
Commissioner Torres 
moved to begin the 
GHURA BoC meeting. 
There were no 
objections. Motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
Vice Chairman Sanchez 
indicated that the 
board was going back 
to item number five, 
Change Order #1, IFB 
GHURA-24-004 
Renovation and 
upgrade of Basketball 
Court and Construction 
of Generator room at 
Toto Gardens. He 
indicated that 
corrections would be 
made to the letter 
addressed to Mr. Lee at 
O.H. Construction and 
correcting the date 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2025                                                    Page 6 of 7 
 

which will be corrected 
from May 3, 2025 to 
May 21, 2024. Vice 
Chairman Sanchez 
called for a motion for 
this amendment.  
 
Commissioner Torres 
moved to amend 
Change Order #1-
GHURA-24-004; 
Renovation and 
Upgrade of Basketball 
Court and Construction 
of Generator Room at 
Toto Gardens in the 
adjusted amount of 
$1,720,600.00 with a 
new completion date of 
June 30, 2025 to O.H. 
Construction amending 
the letter from GHURA 
to Mr. Lee for the 
contract dated May 3, 
2025 to May 21, 2024. 
Commissioner Corpus 
seconded the motion to 
the amendment. There 
were no objections. 
Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of March 25, 2025                                                    Page 7 of 7 
 

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

AGENDA ITAM 
 

DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Next proposed 
scheduled board 
meeting: Tuesday, April 
8, 2025 

 No action  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

  [428/25] 

Commissioner Rice 

moved to adjourn the 

March 25, 2025 GHURA 

BoC meeting. 

Commissioner Corpus 

seconded the motion. 

The motion passed. 

The meeting was 

adjourned at 12:58 

P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAL 
 
              ______________________________ 
        Elizabeth F. Napoli 
        Board Secretary/Executive 
Director 
   
        Date __________________________ 

    



Board Meeting of April 8, 2025 PAGE 1 of 5



Board Meeting of April 8, 2025 PAGE 2 of 5



Board Meeting of April 8, 2025 PAGE 3 of 5



Board Meeting of April 8, 2025 PAGE 4 of 5



Board Meeting of April 8, 2025 PAGE 5 of 5




